
Mesick Board of Education 

Regular meeting on Sept. 12th, 2022 

Meeting called to order by President Jason McCree at 6:00 pm.  Present were 

Jason McCree, Sally Flatman, Eric Spencer, Will Sexton, Kirsten Ross and Craig 

Gabier.  Absent was Jason Abraham. Also present were Mr. Hollenbeck, Mr. 

Morey, Mr. Charnes, Mrs. Wagatha, Mrs. Bontekoe, 4 representatives from the 

SEEDS program, Coach Quiggins, Coach Parrish and 3 members of the public. 

After the Pledge of Allegiance, President McCree asked Craig to be the Acting 

Secretary. 

A motion was made by Sally and 2nd by Craig to approve the minutes of the 

August 8, 2022 Regular Meeting; the September 1, 2022 Special Meeting and the 

September 1, 2022 Special Meeting Closed Session Minutes.  The motion passed 

6-0. 

A motion was made by Kirsten and 2nd by Will to pay the bills as presented. The 

motion passed 6-0. 

Mr. Mike Cool from the accounting firm of Baird, Cotter and Bishop gave a 

detailed account of the latest audit.  He said that it went very well and all looked 

good. He said he had performed a separate audit involving the Elementary and 

Secondary Schools Emergency Relief (ESSER) Fund monies.  Due to these monies, 

the Food Service Fund has more money that what the State wants to see but he 

said this is a good thing. He said he has informed Katrina Bontekoe, the School 

bookkeeper and they are working on a spend-down plan for the extra $11,000 . 

He said the General Fund balance was very good but 75% of if was generated by 

the Highpoint Virtual Academy monies so the School should watch this closely in 

the future. 

Ms. Sarah Shelp from the National. Seeking Educational Equity and Diversity 

(SEEDs) Project introduced her three colleagues, Rose, Jennifer and Stephanie 

then gave an update on what they are working on in our school and community. 

This included an outdoor garden behind the Elementary School and two Tower 

gardens in classrooms. She said they are seeking groups and individuals in the 



Mesick School and community to participate with them in these and future 

projects.  

Volleyball coach, Stacey Quiggins, explained what would be occurring if the Board 

approved her request for a team “Lock-in” proposed for Sept. 23rd and 24th at the 

High School. A motion was made by Eric and 2nd by Will to approve her request.  

The motion passed 6-0. 

Mr. McCree then asked if there was any Communications From the Public. Dan 

Roby voiced his concerns about student safety at the bus stop at East 26 and 

North 29 roads. Heather Bradley and Amanda Hall updated the Board about their 

activities involving the Mesick Athletics Boosters club. They listed several athletic 

teams that have received monies and also told about their upcoming fund raisers. 

Mr. Hollenbeck added a couple items to his written Superintendent’s report. The 

Benzie Central/Frankfort ski team had asked him if there were any students from 

Mesick who would be interested in being on their ski team and would need an 

answer by Sept 16th. Mr. Hollenbeck said, with the Board’s agreement, he would 

like to inquire from the students and parents if there is any interest. A detailed 

listing of the parent’s and student’s costs and responsibilities would be included. 

He asked that the Board send him an email as soon as possible with their 

thoughts and suggestions.  Mr. Hollenbeck also requested a Special Board 

meeting before the Regular October meeting to discuss extending his current 

Supt. Contract.  Eric suggested using a scheduling application to assist in finding a 

mutually convenient date for all concerned. 

Mr. Charnes said that a 3rd pre-school classroom is being added. He mentioned 

that the Intermediate School District’s Emotionally Impaired program, which 

leases a room from Mesick School, now has two students and three teachers 

using the leased room. Both students are from outside our district and are being 

bused here by the ISD. All costs are paid for by the ISD except for breakfast and 

lunch. Mr. Charnes said he and staff members are working with Mrs. Jodie 

Redman from the ISD in testing students on their math skills to determine where 

they are doing well and where they are not.  

Mr. Morey updated the Board on how the High School is performing compared to 

the rest of the State by using M-Step testing. He said we are at the same level as 

most schools.  Mr. Charnes said that the elementary is also at State levels. 



Mr. Hollenbeck updated the Board about Transportation and Maintenance. He 

said that due to the lack of a bus driver, the elementary, full time custodian is 

doing both bus driving and custodial work so doesn’t have enough time to 

complete all of his custodial duties.  Mr. Hollenbeck said that an additional, two 

bus drivers are now in training and believes this will solve the situation.  

A motion was made by Will and 2nd by Eric to hire Matthew McConnell as an 

Elementary teacher.  The motion passed 6-0 

A motion was made by Eric and 2nd by Kirsten to approve the Construction 

Manager’s recommendation to enter into a contract with Symons Building 

Specialties, LLC, to do the special lockers project in the High School for $59,050.00 

The motion passed 6-0. Note: this is approximately $6,000 below the previous 

bid. 

A motion was made by Eric and 2nd by Kirsten to approve the contract for Kile 

Charnes. The motion passed 6-0. 

A motion was made by Eric and 2nd by Craig to approve the contract for Scott 

Morey.  The motion passed 6-0. 

A motion was made by Craig and 2nd by Sally to approve the contract for Jennifer 

Wagatha.  The motion passed 6-0 

The motion to approve the Volleyball lock-in had already been approved earlier in 

the meeting. 

With no further business to complete, President McCree adjourned the meeting 

at 7:04 pm. 

Respectfully submitted, Craig Gabier, Acting Secretary. 

 


